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NOTICE
MEETING OF THE ELECTRIC COMMITTEE
(Blaies/Albers/Heap/Meechling)

An Electric Committee Meeting of the Village of Freeburg will be held at the
Municipal Center, Executive Board Room, on Wednesday, September 16, 2020, at

5:30 p..
ELECTRIC COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA
I. Ttems to be Discussed

A. 0Old Business
1. Approval of August 12, 2020 Minutes
2. Customer Issues
3. IMEA Energy Efficiency Grant
4. North Substation CAT Work/PLC Unit #12 Fail Repair/Replacement
5. Unit #6 Circuit Breaker Repair ~ IMEA Letter dated August 14, 2020

B. New Business
1. FY2020 Audit

C. General Concerns
D. Public Participation

E. Adjourn

At said Electric Committee Meeting, the Village Trustees may vote on whether or not to hold an
Executive Session to discuss the selection of a person to fill a public office [5 ILCS, 120/2 — (c)
(3)], litigation [5 ILCS, 120/2 - (c}11)] personnel [5 ILCS, 120/2 — (c)(1)], collective negotiating
matters between the pubhc body and its employees or their representatwes [5 TILCS 120/2
(C)(2)or real estate transactions [5 ILCS, 120/2 - (c}{5)]. :
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ELECTRIC COMMITTEE MEETING
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Wednesday, August 12, 2020 at 5:30 p.m.
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The meeting of the Electric Committee was called to order at 5:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
August 12, 2020 by Chairperson Mike Blaies. Committee members present were Chairman Mike
Blaies, Trustee Denise Albers, Trustee Mike Heap, Trustee Lisa Meehling, Mayor Seth Speiser,
Village Clerk Jerry Menard (absent), Trustee Bob Kaiser, Trustee Ray Matchett, Public Works
Director John Tolan, Head Lineman Shane Krauss, Water/Sewer Department Leader Gregg
Blomenkamp, Police Chief Mike Schutzenhofer (absent), Zoning Administrator Matt Trout,
Village Attorney Fred Keck, Village Administrator Tony Funderburg and Office Manager Julie
Polson. Guest present: Janet Baechle.

A. OLD BUSINESS:

L. Approval of July 15, 2020 Minutes; Trustee Denise Albers motioned to approve the July 15,

2020 minutes and Trustee Mike Heap seconded the motion. All voting yea, the motion
carried,

Customer [ssues: Head Lineman Shane Krauss said we have had a pretty eventful past month.
We the 2 poles hit, the Save Site outage, we did well with the 2 guys here. We had ten different
locations with outages, the worst being a cross arm that broke off on Railroad Street. We had
to shut down the north circuit for about 30 minutes. Parrish Trucking had a pole with a
primary go down. It could have been much worse with the winds we had. The portable
generators were ready at the Meadow Brook and Shampoodles lift stations, but Shane was
able to get the power back on quickly. John thanked the electric crew, police officers and fire
department. There was a lot of good communication between the departments. Shane also
commended his crew. This was one of the first events his younger guys have dealt with and
they did very well.

IMEA Energy Efficiency Grant: John has not heard anything from Eric on Gary’s application.
John has another solar teleconference on July 3ot He said Chris from IMEA informed them
that the load is down 5% for all of IMEA. IMEA reported legislation for net metering that
would include the generating communities would be required to report to the Illinois
Commerce Commission. If we wanted to raise our rates, we would have to get their approval,
and IMEA will fight that. The percentage of solar allowed in communitities was further
discussed. If all 34 communities had 2% solar, that would be a $1,200,000 loss in load. He
thinks the percentage will get contentious at some point. John confirmed we can’t deny
someone solar. We can regulate what we pay back.

North Substation CAT Work/PL.C Unit #12 Fail Repair/Replacement: This can be taken off
the agenda. Shane has a quote from ISO, and is working with BHMG on other companies to
quote it to see if we interested in changing brands. A new company would have to install all
new equipment. He will obtain quotes from other companies.
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Unit #6 Circuit Breaker Repair; Shane reported we were installing the breaker, BHM&G was
their doing the control work; and we had to kill power to whole plant. Shane asked if we could
fire up, and when we did, we heard some noises, the breaker that fires up the plant tripped up
which it is supposed to do if something is wrong. The breaker shift closed, when we turned
the main power on, we sent power backwards to the generator. BHM&G called several
professionals, and made the decision to try to run it, we had good voltage, saw some arcing
and rubbing and shut the engine down right away. We had 2 companies come in, one for the
engine and one for the generator. The representative from the engine company did’t see
anything wrong. He checked the crank shaft and couldn’t find anything. He wants to look at
the front bearing. The generator side (electrical side of the engine} took the damage, and they
feel its repairable. The approximate cost is $48,400. This is the oldest generator we have with
the NESHAP on it. A new generator is about $1,000,000. We get $6,000 a month as a credit
on our IMEA bill. Since we generated several times in 2020, we don’t lose our generating
credit spot in the future.

NEW BUSINESS:

Apprentice Linemen Step Increage: Shane reported our apprentices went down last week for
their final exam and all tested 96 and above, They are ready for journeyman lineman with
Matt Amann effective 8/6/20, Max Sallman effective 8/23/20; and Andy Tolan effective
8/29/20. Shane said they have come a long way and area ready to be moved forward.

Trustee Denise Albers motioned to recommend to the full Board the Jollowing employees
be promoted to journeyman lineman Matt Amann effective 8/6/20, Max Sallman effective
8/23/20 and Andy Tolan effective 8/29/20 and Trustee Lisa Meehling seconded the motion,
All voting yea, the motion carried.

Edison Estates Purchase of Infrastructure: Tony said we have approximately $35,000 in
transformers that need to be ordered soon since they take about 10 weeks to getin. These are
for the subdivision and we will be reimbursed. Shane said he doesn’t want the subdivision held
up. He has three quotes from Solomon, T&R Flectric and a new company, Emerald
Transformers. We will order an additional 5 for our stockpile. Shane will bill the transformers
after they are installed.

Bond Refinance: Tony has been watching the rates for a while, Page 1 explains the 3 bonds
we have: swimming pool bond with interest rates that range from 4.25% - 5.25%; the electric
bond with rates that range from 2.2% - 2.85% and the TIF bond with rates that range from
3.05to 3.3%. If we combine the bonds and refinance, we would end up with 1.35% and save
$109,033.98. Tony believes thisis a good amount of money to save. Hlinois banks would buy
the right to bid on this, with Chase and Regions being the biggest banks in Illinois right now.
This would not extend any time on the loans and everything would be paid off by 2026.
Trustec Albers believes we should do this, and also said it is our job to watch out for our
citizens’ money. Tony will bring back an official proposal.

Executive Session to Discuss Personnel, 5 ILCS 120/2-(c)1. Real Estate, 5 ILCS 120/2-(¢)5 and
Potential Litigation, 5 ILCS 120/2-(c}11:

EXECUTIVE SESSION
6:18 P.M.
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Trustee Lisa Meehling motioned to enter Executive Session citing Personnel, 5 ILCS,
120/2-(c)1, Real Estate, 5 ILCS 120/2-(c)5 and Potential Litigation, 5 ILCS 120/2/-(c)11 and
Trustee Denise Albers seconded the motion. All voting yea, the motion carried.

EXECUTIVE SESSION ENDED
7:20 P.M.

The regular committee meeting session reconvened at 7:30 p-m.

C. GENERAL CONCERNS: Tony stated we are going to miss out on $9,929 in late fees that
we will never recover. We have 30 residents that owe bills, out of that number, 20 are renters.
To date, we are owed $33,626. We will place liens on the properites if we unable to collect the

fees.

D. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: Janet commented on the money spent on unit 6.

E. ADJOURN: Trustee Denise Albers motioned to adjourn at 7:33 p.m and Trustee Lisa
Meehling seconded the motion. All voting yea, the motion carried.,

8%&@ \}Bmu

Julie Polson
Office Manager
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August 14’ 2020 217-789-4632 / FAX 217-789-4642
John Tolan
Public Works Director RECEI VED
14 Southgate Center
X AUS 1o 200

I'reeburg, IL 62243

Dear John:

We wanted to reach out and provide you with some important information in addressing the current
unscheduled outage of the Freeburg #6 generating unit. In addition to the loss of capacity credits
during the outage, there are timeframes for the unit to return to service or risk losing its credits
permanently. Unit #6 has been out of service since February 26, 2020,

The IMEA/Village Capacity Purchase Agreement gives the Member 12 months to get a unit back
in service from an unscheduled outage, or its Dedicated Capacity can be reduced to zero by vote
of the IMEA Board (Board). The Member Generation Policy recognizes that certain units may
require more time for major outages. It gives an additional 12 month extension of the allowed
outage period for major outages, so long as the Member's governing body (Village Board) takes
affirmative formal action to approve a definitive plan within the first 6 months afier the event that
caused the major outage. If there is any thought that the unit will be out past February 26, 2021,
the Village should be considering formal action by the Village Board in the very near future to
approve a plan for getting the unit back in service.

The deadline for Village Board action approving the plan would normally be August 26, 2020, but
the individual facts of this outage may give you more time. As we understand it, the Village had
a plan to fix a breaker that was identified as the problem. That plan was followed on July 227,
but an additional problem was discovered that prevented the unit from being able to run. So, while
the official Unscheduled Outage date for Freeburg #6 remains February 26, 2020, it is reasonable
to allow the Village until January 22, 2021 to take action on a plan if' it needs to extend the outage
beyond 12 months. Please keep us informed as you work through the process. Of course, the
capacity credits will continue to be withheld during the current unscheduled outage until the unit
can perform a Satisfactory Generation Run under the Generation Policy.

You should also be aware that each unit located in the MISO region is required to test in the 12-
month period prior to August 31 of each year in order to be able to be used as capacity starting
June 1 of the following year. Since the unit did have a successful generation run in February of
this year that can be used to meet MISO’s annual testing requirement, it would not be at risk of
being disqualified as capacity for Delivery Year 2021/2022. However, if the outage persists, the
unit may be at risk of being disqualified for the following vear(s).

PARTNERS IN DELIVERING
EXCELLENCE IN UTILITY SERVICES

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC AGENCY
ILLINOIS PUBLIC ENERGY AGENCY
[LLINCIS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES ASSOCIATION
WWW.IMEA . ORG

3400 CONIFER DRIVE, SPRINGFIELD, [L. 62711
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To recap, Freeburg #6 generating unit went on an Unscheduled Qutage on February 26, 2020.
Consistent with the Generation Policy, the capacity payment for Freeburg #6 is currently not being
paid to Freeburg pending the unit’s successful return to service. As shown above, there are

steps that need to be taken to preserve Freeburg’s rights with respect to the capacity credits from
Freeburg #6. IMEA Staff is available to discuss these matters and to assist in any test planning

that may be required.

If you have any questions or comments regarding the above, please feel free to contact the IMEA
Operations staff at [-800-243-4632,

Regards,

noande FMpecce

Amanda Ripperda, Manager, Power Supply
On behalf of Alice M. Schum, Vice President, Operations

ce: Kevin Gaden, President & CEO
Kevin Wagner, Vice President, Engineering
Honporable Seth Speiser, Village President
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Board
of Trustees of the Village of
Freeburg, Illinois:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Village of Freeburg, Illinois as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the governmental
funds financial statements in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting as
described in Note 1; this includes determining that the mddified cash basis of accounting
is an acceptable basis for the presentation of the governmental fund financial statements in
the circumstances. Management is also responsiblg for the preparation and fair presentation
of the business-type and proprietary fund %angal statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Unifed States of America. Management is
also responsible for the design, implemégtaiion, and maintenance of internal coutrol
relevant to the preparation and fair prasentatigp-“é‘féﬁnancial staternents that are free from
material misstaterment, whether due Eﬁg:i% fraud.

P

Qur responsibility is to express an Qﬁlnion on these financial statements based on our audit,
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

Auditor’s Responsibility Ve

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Jjudgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An andit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounfing policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide
a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present faitly, in all material
tespects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities (modified cash
basis), the business-type activities (accrual basis), each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Village of Freeburg, Iilinois, as of March 31, 2020, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
(Governmental activities - modified cash basis, Business-type activities — accrual basis)
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with the basis of accounting deseribed in
Note 1,

Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of
accounting. The financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting,
which is a basis of accounting other than accounthlg%rinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America, except for the Village's Pro%r'etaxy Funds, which have been
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, Oug.Spinion is nbt modified with respect to that
matter. §

'

¥

Other Matters
N
Required Supplementary Informatign/Oth er. Information

Accounting principles gener@f??é&pted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and, analysis on pages 4 to 12, the budgetary comparison
information on pages 41 and 42, sind the schedules of pension finding information on pages
43 and 44 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basie financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s tesponses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance,



Other Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Village of Freeburg, Illinois® basic financial statements. The
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial staternents.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements, Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additiona! procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements ot to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Certified Public Accountants
Alton, Hlinois

September 8, 2020



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois’ (Village) annual audit presents a
management’s discussion and analysis of the Village’s financial activity during the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2020. The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is
designed to focus on current activities, resulting changes and currently known facts and
should be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements and footnotes.
Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this information rests with the Village.

OYERVIEW OF THYE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the
Village’s basic financial statements. There are three components to the basic financial
statermnents:

1. Govermnment-wide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the basic financial statements

&

&

&

This report also contains required supplementary information/other information in addition
to the basic financial statements. ﬂ\ p

LN
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The government-wide financial sts‘i?t?emg;%;;gm are designed to provide readers with a broad

overview of the Village’s ﬁng;meg inf'a matner similar to a private-sector business. The
government-wide financial statements eéxclude any fiduciary fund activities.

The government-wide financial ‘stdtements distingnish functions of the Village that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the
Village include general government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation and
development. The business-type activities include water, sewer, electric light and power,
and swimming pool.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Village’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the Village is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Village’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. Changes in net position are reported on the
modified cash basis of accounting for the governmental activities and the accrual basis of
accounting for the business-type activities,



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control aver resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village can be divided into two
categories: governmental and proprietary.

Governmental Funds, Governmental funds are used to account for essential functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Because
the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statenents, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
Village’s near-term financizl decisions. Both the governmental fimd statement of assets,
liabilities and fund balances arising from modified cash basis fransactions and the
governmental fund staternent of revenues and expenditures arising from modified cash
basis transactions provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between the
governmental funds and the government-wide goveriggng{}tal activities.

The Village maintains four individual governméntal %ﬁds. Information is presented

separately in the governmental funds statemefit o sassets, liabilities and fund balances

arising from modified cash basis transactions and’in the governmental fund statement of

reventes and expenditures arising from rﬁ%ﬁi@@ﬁd@c sh basis transactions for two major

funds: General Fund and the TIF F‘uyd%Datagfi?br the other nonmajor governmental funds

are combined in the supplemen%aryxi‘?ifogatiég and reported in total in a separate column.
fa

The Village adopts an annual blidget for all governmental funds. A budgetary comparison
schedule for the General Fun% and the TIF Fund has been provided to demonstrate Jegal
compliance with the adopted buc%gt‘

Proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions and the same
type of information presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements, The Village uses an enterprise fund to account for its water, sewer, electric
light and power, and swimming pool operations.

Notes {o the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.

Required supplementary information/Other Information. The Village reports
budgetary comparison and retirement funding progress related to IMRF as required
supplementary information/other information following the notes to the financial
statements.

Other supplementary informatien. The combining fund statements, referred to earlier in
connection with non-major governmental funds, are presented immediately following the
required supplementary information.




VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Basis of accounting, The Village presents its financial statements for the governmental
funds on the modified cash basis of accounting, The modified cash basis of accounting is
a basis of accounting other than generally accepted accounting principles. Basis of
accounting is a reference to when financial events are recorded, such as the timing for
recognizing revenues, expenses, and their related assets and liabilities, Under the Village’s
modified cash basis of accounting, revenues and expenses and related assets and liabilities
are recorded when they result from cash transactions, except for the recording of
depreciation expense related to capital assets in the government-wide financial statements
for all activities.

As a result of the use of this modified cash basis of accounting, certain assets and their
related revenues (such as accounts receivable and revenue for unbifled or provided services
not yet collected) and certain liabilities and their related expenses (such as accounts payable
and expenses for good or services received but not yet paid, and accrued expenses and
liabilities) are not recorded in the financial statements for the governmental funds.
Therefore, when reviewing the financial information and discussion within this annual
report, the reader should keep in mind the limitations resulting from the use of the modified

cash basis of accounting. e '

A
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
’ %

The Village has presented its financial statem&g: _i.lﬁfder the reporting model pursuant to
Governmental Accounting Standards Board %Stgqtelﬁ“ér% No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic Financial
Statements and Management's Discussion a%ré{’ ?Analysz's Jor State and Local Governments,

As noted earlier, net position may 5erve @gg}; fime as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the caseﬁpﬁh@iﬁllage, assets exceeded liabilities by $10,479,710 at
the close of the most recent fiscal yeeg.

The largest portion of the Viilage-’gnet position reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., and, buildings, machinery, equipment and infrastructure), less any related debt used
to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Village uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequentially, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the Village’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINQIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The condensed statement of net position is as follows:

Govenmental Activities Business-type Activities Tota
March 3}, March 31, Mareh 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2670 2019 2020 2019
Current and other assets b3 938,746 1,705,594 § 3985162 0§ 4274642 & 4923908 § 5,980,236
{Capital ngsaty 1,984 826 1,420,076 9028281 9218718 . 11,913,109 11,338.794
Total asuets 2,923,572 3,125,670 13,513,443 14,193,360 16,837,017 17,319,030
Deferred Qutflows - - 363,523 338,328 363,523 538328
Long-term liabilities
cutstanding 683,324 1,231,750 4,244,274 5,090,116 4,927,598 6,321,866
Cither liabilities 4,996 14,015 1,182 667 565342 1,187 663 379,337
Total liabilities ) 688,320 1,243,763 5,426,941 5,055,458 6,115,261 6,90¢ 223
Defarred Inflows . - 605,569 426,103 605,569 426,103

Net position:
Net invested in capital

assets 1,821,502 1,363,326 5,794,772 5,338,768 7,616,274 6,722,094
Restricted 277,980 933,138 - - 277,980 933,138
Unrestricted 133,770 (416,559) 2A19.686%, 3,201,359 2,585,456 2,874,800

Total ast position $2233252 5 LE19905 5 Ba4dss U5 8650127 § 10479710 % 10,530,002

# 5

Total net position decreased $50,322 resulting i abﬁance 0f$10,479,710 as of March 31,
2020, Current assets, which include cash, im@g@rﬁég&s and accounts receivable, decreased
$1,056,328, Non-current assets increased ‘?(45’?4;‘""3-}L51 due to current year asset additions
being in excess of depreciation. Total Tiabilitids decreased $795,962 resulting in a balance
of $6,115,261 as of March 31, 2025? Outi;w@;ﬁdﬁi‘ng debt, including long-term and short-term
portions, decreased $1,394,268due 1§ regular debt retirements and a reduction in the net
pension liability. ¢ "y

The change in net position is furtthér examined in the Analysis of Net Position section of
the MD&A.
ANALYSIS OF NET POSITION

2020 2019
Analysis of Net Position Percent Amount Percent Amount
Net investment in capital assets 72.7% £ 7616274 63.8% 5 6,722,094
Restricted 2.7% 271,980 2.9% 933,138
Unrastricted 24.7% 2,585,456 27.3% 2,874,800
Total et position 100.0% $ 10,479,710 100.,0% £ 10,530,032

Total net position balances decreased by $50,322 in fiscal year 2020 to a total ending
balance of $10,479,710. Capital net position balances increased by $894,180 in the current
year due to capital additions and debt reduction exceeding depreciation. The unrestricted
net position balances changed by the net income of the related operating activities.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The revenue and expendiiure comparisons that compnse the current year increase are as
follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Revenues/Receipts 2020 2019

Property tax & 811,913 $ 775,680
Sales and nse tax 567,957 533,657
State income tax 469,103 417,663
Replacement tax 6,835 5,061
Video gaming tax 63,366 47,490
Charges for services 339,915 352,080
Telecommunications tax 70,780 84,657
Motor fuel tax 151,740 111,098
Utility tax 252,649 258,381
Investment income 13,168 14,503
Operating grants/contribations 37,632 29,940
Gain on disposal of assets “ 20,572
Miscellaneous 57,686 19,125
Total revanues $ 2,872?544 $ 2,669,907

VAN
Total revenues for the governmental activities gncreased $202,837 for the year ended
March 31, 2020. The increase is mainly due to h&ging operating grants/contributions as
well as an increase in property taxes. gy%

@f'*%

?fZO?,O 3 2019
Perccnt = Amount Percent Amount

Expenditures by catepory "

General governiment }3{7%, $ 344,695 13.7% £ 318,993
Public safety LS 5?.#‘5% 1,320,774 51.9% 1,204,016
Highways and streets ", 22.3% 561,801 22.2% 514,731
Sanitation " 9.8% 246,365 10.6% 245,143
Interest on long-term debt 1.7% 43,7462 1.6% 37,357
Total expenditures 100.0% 5 2,517,397 100.0% $ 2,320,445

The Village reported an increase in expenses for governmental activities of $196,952,
Public safety had significantly higher expenditures in the current year. Public safety
reported the highest expenditure category with 53% of all governmental expenditures,



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The above expenditure categories include amounts for depreciation expense on assets
purchased in the current and prior years. The breakdown by category Is as follows:

2020 2019
General government $ 32,692 § 32,000
Public safety 52,963 70,252
Highways and streets 40,784 43,742
Sanitation 10,523 10,523

Total depreciation  $ 136,962 $ 156,607

Total capital outlay expenditures in the governmental fund financial statements for the
current year totaled $701,712.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Revennes 2020 2019

Water charges § 873,433~ $ 881,256
Sewer charges 690,5 ff}; 685,768
Electric charges 5, _7]53,442 Ty 5,249,568
Swimming pool charges 7 86,487 \X 87,359
Property taxes %, stois 52,053
Grant revenue o % 90,154
Gain (Loss) on disposal of assets 3w, ™ - 4,651
Investment income ﬁ% %gf 70,555 71,400
Total revenues ¢ 2 4$6943,452 $7.122,209

P

Total revenues for the business-type activities decreased $178,757 for the year ended
Match 31, 2020. The Village hac%gﬁfeﬂeral decreases in grant revenue in the current year,

2020 2019

Operatine Expenditures Percent Amount Percent Amount

Personal services 19.2% % 1,390,430 19.7% % 1,428,063
Contractual services 11.0% 795,128 10.6% 772,936
Electricity and water purchase  51,7% 3,742,779 51.1% 3,715,331
Supplies and materials 3.6% 260,608 3.7% 269,022
Heat, light and power 0.5% 35,264 0.5% 38,219
Depreciation 14.0% 1,011,818 14.3% 1,041,473
Total expenditures 100.0%  $ 7,236,027 100.0%  § 7,265,044

Expenses in the business-type activities decreased in total by $29,017. As in the prior year,
the largest categories of operating expense were for electricity and water purchases which
increased $27,448 in the current year. Personal services decreased due to the large increase
in the prior year for the IMRF Hability that was considerably lower in the current year.



MANAGEMENT'S DI DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FUNDS FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, the Village uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements,

Governmental funds. The focus of the Village's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the Village’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year,

As of the end of the 2020, the Village’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $837,216, a decrease of $758,455 in comparison with the prior year. A
large portion of this balance constitutes unreserved, undesignated fimd balance, which is
available for spending at the Village’s discretion. However, $181,446 (TIF Fund and
Special Revenue Funds) has been restricted for future debt payments and other restricted
expenditures.
ra

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Village. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $655,770. This balance
decreased $102,671 in the current year. p e

Y
The TIF Fund decreased $439,178 in the current year for a fund balance of $83,910 due fo
making advance payments on the outstandmg, “TIF Bonds. The Motor Fuel Tax Fund
reported a decrease of $217,066 foggf an“‘endmg balance of $67,805. The Impact Fees Fund
reported an increase of $460 in the cu;lrent year for a fund balance of $29,731.

Proprietary fund. The Vlila_ge $ p?%pﬁe-tmy tunds provide the same information found in
the government-wide financial -stat;x?iems, but in more detail,

Unrestricted net position of the Waterworks, Sewer, Electric Light and Power, and
Swimming Pool funds at the end of the year amounted to $2,449,686, a decrease of
$841,673 in comparison with prior year. Other factors concerning the finances of this fund
have already been addressed in the discussion of the Village’s government-wide financial
statements.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

A comparison of budget and actual expenditures for the General Fund is as follows:

Budget Actual
General Fund $ 2,688,012 $2,699,947

The budget was passed on March 19, 2019 and was not amended.

10



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

Governmiental Activities Busineas-type Activities Toial
Mareh 31, March 31, Maech 31, Mareh 31, Mnrch 31, March 31,
2026 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Land $ 83840 % 83,840 % 426,700 % 426,700 § 510,540 % 510,540
Buildings and

Improvements 711,766 445,881 2,820,134 2,390,360 3,531,800 2,836,241
Swimming Pool - - 598,788 642,434 598,788 642,434
Infrastructure 832,518 630,589 - - 932,518 630,589
Pistribution and

Coliection Systems - . 5,183,252 5,687,132 5,183,252 5,687,132
Vehicles and

Equipment 256,702 259,766 399,400 1,092 1,186,111 1,031,858

$ 1984826 § 1420076 § 9928281 3 9918718 % 11913100 & 11,3337

The Village’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities
as of March 31, 2020 amounts to $11,913,109, net of saccumnulated depreciation, This
investment in capital assets includes land, buiiding’s‘y and improvements, equipment,
vehicles and infrastructure. The total outlay for gaijitai‘ ssets for the current year was
$1,723,095. The largest additions in the current year wer for the Police Department
building expansion, a boring machine, engineéﬁ*i@g Tor the new sewer plant, and several
pieces of equipment. These additions were §ﬁset ”By_ current year depreciation expense of
$1,148,780, thereby resulting in a net increagﬁ@in net capital assets for the current year.
Additional information related to cp’ita% as%e% can be found in Note 4 of the financial
staternents. %%’

7, Liong-term Debt
=

At the end of 2020, the Village had total long-term debt obligations for governmental
activities and business-type activities in the amount of $683,324 and $4,133,511,
respectively, compared to $1,231,750 and $4,559,950 at the end of 2019,

Governmental Activitles Business-type Activities Total
March 31, March 31, Mareh 31, Mareh 31, March 31, Mareh 31,
2020 2019 2024 2019 20 201%
Loans Payabie § - 5 -~ b 1412755 0§ 15056 § 0 1412753 1,534,155
Notes Payabic 137448 44,149 183,334 98,715 340,782 142,864
Capitsl Leases 5876 12,601 12,424 27,079 18,300 39,680
Bonds Payable 520,000 1,173,000 2,525,000 2,900,000 3.045.000 4,075,000
Total Delt 3 6833724 3 1231750 § 4133511 0§ 4559950 0§ 4816835 5 5751700

The governmental activities reported decreases in long-term debt of $548,426. The
business-type activities reported a decrease in long-term debt of $426,439. Overall, the
decrease in debt was $974,865. Additional information related to long-term debt can be
found in Note 8 of the financial statements.

11



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village of Freeburg’s
finances for all those with an interest in the Village’s finances. Questions concerning any
of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the Village Clerk’s Office, 14 Southgate Center, Freeburg, L
62243,

12



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, YLILINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
(BUSINESS -TYPE ACTIVITIES - ACCRUAL BASIS)
(GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - MODIFIED CASH BASIS)
MARCH 31, 2020

(Governmental Busiziess-type
Activities Actjvities Total
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 746,742 % 1,027,083 & 1,773,825
Investments 192,004 2,211,452 2,403,456
Receivables (Net of allowance
for uncollectible): “ 662,765 662,765
Prepaid Expenses “ 83,862 83,862
Capital Assets:
Land 83,840 426,700 510,540
Buildings and Improvements 1,146,374 | 8,250,941 9,397,315
Swimming Pool ﬁ{ 1,108,016 1,108,016
Infrastructure 1,058,210 W, - 1,058,210
Distribution and Collection Systems f§ - “‘-%%i 15,461,058 15,461,058
Vehicles and BEquipment 4, ,05%’] 83 2,936,580 3,993,365
Less: Accurnulated Depreciation _ .360,383) (18,255,012) (19,615,395)
Net Capital Assets ' ?g*’“@‘:xl,%?i\,’SZ(i 9,928,283 11,913,109
Total Assets e $125.923,572  § 13913445  § 16,837,017
R
Deferred Outflows of Resources x\‘ ﬁ:ﬁw%%
Future Pension Expense P '_\f : ; - $ 363,523 $ 363,523
Accounts Payable b 4,996 b 482,149 5 487,143
Accrued Salariss - 46,710 46,710
Acerued Interest - 23,900 23,900
Customer Deposits - 156,723 156,723
Line of Credit ; - 473,185 473,185
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 49,768 350,326 600,004
e In More Than One Year 633,536 3,693,948 4,327,504
Total Liabilities 688,320 5,426,941 6,115,261
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Future Pension Expense 3 - 3 605,569 5 603,569
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,821,502 5,794,772 7,616,274
Restricted 271,980 - 277,980
Unrestricted 135,770 2,449 636 2,585,456
Taotal Net Position $ 2235252 $  B7244,458 $ 10,479,710

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE ARISING FROM MODIFIED CASH BASIS TRANSACTIONS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
MARCH 31, 2020

Other Total
Governmental  Governmental
General TIF Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 495454 § 80,136 % 74,618 & 650,208
Investments 169,989 - 22,015 192,004
Due from Other Funds - 3,774 503 4,677
Total Assets § 665443 § 83910 § 97,536 % 846,889
Liabilities and Fund Balance S
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ $ - 3 4,996
Due to Other Funds - 4,677
Total Liabilities - - 9,673
A 9
Fund Balance: \
Restricted ﬁ - 83,910 97,536 181,446
Unassigned 655,770 - . 655,770
Total Fund Balance 655,770 83,910 97,536 837,216
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balance § 665443 § 83910 % 97,536 § 846,889

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



Net position of governmental ac §t v1t1es

VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF ASSETS,

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES ARISING FROM MODIFIED

CASH BASIS TRANSACTIONS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

MARCH 31, 2020

Amounts reported for governmental fund balances are different because:

Fund balances - total governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reporied on the balance sheet of the
governmental funds.

o
s§—
&

Long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) is not rr::ported ag a liability on the

balance sheet of the governmental finds. 7 .
f P )

Internal service funds are included in the statémeﬂt of net position in the

government wide financial staternents as. these funds benefit the general

overnment as & whole. o 3 ;f’

) X

%, ﬁ Hor

“‘ix

‘\

$ 837,216

1,984,826

(683,324)

96,534

$ 2,235,252

The notes to the financial staterents are an integral part of this statement



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

ARISING FROM MODIFIED CASH BASIS TRANSACTIONS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Revenues:

Property Tax

Utility Tax

Intergovernmental;
Replacement Tax
Sales Tax
State Income Tax
Tocal Use Tax
Telecommunications Tax
Motor Fuel Tax
Video Gaming Tax
Grants

Franchise Fees

Licenses and Permits

Fines and Penalties

Garbage Collection

Investment Earnings

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Public Safety:
Police
Civil Defense
Highways and Streets
Sanitation
Delbt Service:
Principal
interest and Charges
Capital Qutley

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Debt

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Other Total
Gaovernmmental  Governmental
General TIF Funds Funds
$§ 554,825 % 257,088 $ - $ 811,913
252,649 - - 252,649
6,835 . - 6,835
451,046 - - 451,046
469,103 - - 469,103
146,911 - - 146,911
70,780 - - 70,780
. - 151,740 151,740
63366 - - 63,366
23,500 ¢ . - 23,500
21,9884 ‘x% . . 21,088
50&836 ‘%»,% - - 50,836
F0,031, - - 10,031
257,000 - - 257,060
2o 6,928 631 5,383 12,542
-&.,1 ""».QM %
% _’21;818 - - 71,818
2457276 257,719 157,123 2,872,118
iy
312,003 - - 312,003
1,263,037 - - 1,263,037
4,774 - . 4,774
408,999 - 112,018 521,017
235,842 - - 235,842
33,424 655,060 - 688,426
1,865 41,897 - 43,762
440,001 - 261,711 701,712
2,699,947 696,897 373,729 3,770,573
(242,671) (439,178) {216,608) (898,455)
140,000 - - 140,660
140,000 “ “ 140,000
(102,671) (439,178} (216,606) {758,455)
758,441 523,088 314,142 1,395,671
% 655,770 3 83810 $ 97,536 $ 837,216

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND
BEXPENDITURES ARISING FROM MODIFIED CASH BASIS
TRANSACTIONS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 3 (758,455)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense, This
is the amount by which capital outlays ($701,712) exceeded
depreciation expense ($136,962) in the current ye%sr‘.f% 564,750
wf} %\M%%
The issuance of long-term debt (e.g,, bondsﬁl&s%s) provides current
financial resources to governmental ﬁmds,zgégﬂéa%w repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the cuifent financial resources
of governmental funds. Also, gové%enﬁfﬁmds repott the effect of
issuance costs, premiums, discﬁintsi’%ndgsimﬂar itermns when debt is
issued, whereas these amof(its: _%e. deferred and amottized in the
statement of activities. "This amount is the net effect of those
differences in the treatment %’f\lgpg«tezm debt and related items. 548,426

Activity related to the internal service funds are included in the
statement of net position in the government wide financial statements

as these funds benefit the general government as a whole. 626
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 355347

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



s5ely
Current Assets:
Cash gnd Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Customers
Unbilled Revenue
Qther
Prepaid Insurance

Fotal Current Assets

Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings and knprovements
Swimming Pool
Distribution and Collection Systems
Vehicles and Equipment

Less - Accumulated Depreciation
Net Capital Assets
Tatal Assets

Heferred Qutflows of Resources
Future Pension Expense

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Cagh Deficit
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries
Accrued Interest
Line of Credit
Cuerent Portion of Long Term Debt
Customer Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Noneurrent Liabilities:
Net Pension Liability
Long Term Dabt (Net of Current)
Total Noncurrent Lisbililies

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Future Penslon Expense

Net Position
Net Investment in Capial Asgets
Comunitted
Unreserved

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Net Position

VILLAGE OF FREEBURG. ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
MARCH 31, 2020
Non-Major
Major Funds Fund Governmental
Electric Activilies
Light and Swimming Internal
Power Waterworks Sewer Poal Total Service Fund
5 645094 § 170,807 § 229037 % - 3 1,044,938 § 96,534
1,737,637 334,414 139,401 - 2,201,452 -
305,730 48,931 42,621 397,332 -
196,461 37,264 30,303 . 264,028 -
1,408 . . . 1,405 -
63,326 10,313 10,223 - 83,862 -
2,949,703 601,729 451,583 - 4,003,017 26,534
211,373 50,094 158,981 6,250 426,700 -
6,255,209 - 1,686,071 269,571 8,250,941 -
. - o 1,108,015 1,108,016 .
8,186,702 4,091,627 3,1_8%;,729 - 15,461,058 -
1,562,688 749,634 ﬁOO,QQT 123,351 2,936,580 -
16,256,064 4891355 7 5528688 o 107,188 28,183,295 .
11,509,610 3,968,249(.;?@@& 2,083,770 693,383 18,255,012 -
4,746,454 923.106 ™, )§§,444,913 813,803 0,928,283 -
s S
$ 7.696,157 § 1,524,815 ., 573,896,503 $ 813,805 $ 13,931,300 5 943534
o o
Proa o
5 201,343 fgy b § 90,150 § 72,030 b - $ 363,523 & “
Po  F T,
i,
W .
$ . - 35 - by - ¥ 17833 3 17,853 $ -
3 15,%45 67,843 99,618 43 482,149 -
25,703 11,673 9,334 - 46,710 -
18,500 - - 5,000 23,900 -
- - 473,185 - 473,185 -
442,287 10,051 97,988 40,000 550,326 “
89,238 35,219 28,266 “ 136,723 -
851,373 128,784 707,791 62,808 1,730,848 -
61,348 27,468 21,947 - 110,763 -
1,861,221 32,074 1,316,850 270,008 3,583,185 -
2,022,568 59,542 1,341,837 270,000 3,693,943 -
2,873,942 188,328 2,049,628 332,898 3,444,796 -
s 335,404 3 150,178 3 119,990 b - iy 605,569 $ -
2,382,946 880,581 2,027,040 303,803 5,794,772 -
- - - - - 96,334
2,305,208 355,501 (228,125} {22.898) 2,449 686 -
4,688,154 1,276,482 1,798,913 480,907 8,244 458 96,534
5 7.897,500 § 1,614,985 $ 3,968,533 5 213,805 § 14,294,823 5 96,534

The notes to the financial statements arg an integral part of this statement



Operating Revenue;
Charges for Services

Connection Fees
Supplies Sold
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenges:
Personal Services
Contractual Services and Qther
Electricity and Water Purchased

Supplies and Materials
Heat, Light and Power
Drepreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses);

Property Taxes
Interest ITncome

Interest Expense
Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses)

Charnge in Met Position
Met Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

The notes to the financial staternents are an integral part of this statement

VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Non-Major
Major Funds Furd Governmental
Eleotric Activities -
Light and Swimming internal
Power Waterworks Sewer Pool Total Service Fund
£ 5,097,808 $ 836,765 5 683982 $ 66,292 § 6,684,847 b “

8,425 6,140 5,250 - 19,813 -
54,925 20,308 1,285 20,193 96,713 -
10,284 10,220 - - 20,504 -

5,171,442 873,433 650,517 86,487 6,821,879 -
707,440 336,463 285;;]2 61,355 1,390,430 -
541,377 128,410 1_59:218 6,123 795,128 -

3,345,101 B7678 N < 3,742,779 -
117,513 80,028 S 33687 ™ 29380 260,608 -

10,828 5248 %, g@,lss - 35,264 .
648,394 158,11_6 Y _ 131,074 74,234 1,011,818 -
5,370,653 1,103,943 “*e,. 588,339 171,092 7,236,027 -
A §£§ 3
(199.21D) ¢ (232,510), 102,178 (84,605) (414,148) .
P
fm%%

- & . : 51,018 51,018 .
43,904, § 22,592 4,055 4 70,553 626
(64,472 {1,104} {31,541) {15,977 {113,0684) -
{20,568) 21,488 (27,436} 35,045 3,479 626

(219,779 (211,022) 74,692 (49,560) {403,669) 626

4,007,933 1,487,504 1,724,223 530,447 ‘8,65{),127 93,908

$ 4,688,154  $1,276,4382 ¥ 1,798913 $ 480,907 § 8,244,458 $ 96,534




VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, TLLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Naon-Major
- " Major Funds Fund Governmental
Electric Activities -
Light and Swimming Internal
Power Waterworks Sewer Pool Total Service Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Casglt Recelved from Customers $ 5176013 § 872452 % 691442 0§ 86487 8 6,826,394 £ -
Cesh Paid to Suppliers (4,164,930) (668,679) (197,887) (43,351)  (5,074,867) .
Cash Payments to Employees for Services (558,531} (261,147) (214,695) (33,91 (1,088,340) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Operating Activities 452 482 (57,374) 278,860 (10,781) 663,187 "
Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Agsets (235,640) (82,647} {693,064} (8,03 (1,021,383) "
Proceeds from Debt 111,000 37,000 ~ - 148,000 .
Proceeds from Line of Credit - . 4;(35‘5;5 - 473,185 .
Principal Paid on Debt (377,307} {25,218) { i’36,9%4) (35,0003 (574,439) «
TInterest Paid on Debt {66,733) (1104 » {(31.541) (15,443) (115,821) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) By prd .
Capital Financing Activities (568,680) (71969)., 390,334) (59,475) _ (1,090,458) .
., %“
Cash Flows from Investing Activities “b"‘*ét%\ \b\
Purchase of Investment @671 (7928 T (2.380) - (37,020 .
Interest Tncome 43,904 # % 2250 4,055 4 70,535 626
Net Cash Provided By ﬁiigmm N
Investing Activities 17,193 ™ 14,664 1,674 4 33,535 6246
d A
Cash Flows from Non-Canital Financing Activities :
Property Tax 4;?@’* - - 31,018 51,018 -
Customer Deposits 785 1,228 360 - 2,373 .
Net Cash Provided By
Nor-Capital Financing Activities 783 1,228 360 51,018 53,391 -
Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents (98,2203 (1134513 (109,440 {19,234) {340,345) 626
Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Beginning of Year 743,314 284,238 338,477 1,379 1,367.428 95,908
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 645094 3 170,807 % 220037 & {(17.855) % L,077.083 5 5,534

The notes to the financial statemenes are an integral part of this statement



Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating
Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation
Pengion Liability and Deferrals
Decrease (Increase) in:
Accounts Receivable
Unbiiled Revenue
Prepaid Insurance
Escrow
[ncrease (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operatizg Activities

VILLAGE OF FREEBURG. ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Non-Major
Mhjor Pusds Fund Governmental
Blectric Activities -
Light and Swimming Internal
Power Waterworks Sewer Pool Total Service Fund
3(199211) 5 (232,510)  § 102,078 5 (R4605) § (414,148) -
648,394 158,116 131,074 74,234 1,013,818 -
(38,486) (14,843) {11,403) - (65,131 -
3,312 {126) yZSD ~ 5,436 -
(741) {855} Fb15 “ (921) -
(18,306) @0 S E51 . {30,360) .
- - o A - -
o 12,000%, 12,000
Ty
50,694 35,812{’\3? 47,747 (410) 133,843 -
3,226 2,000 o 2316 - 10,651 -
§ 452482 478 (5‘],377-1) § 275860 0§ (10781 3 663,187 b -
& & 4
(\}’F
"‘% %

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2020

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Village of Freeburg, IHlinois have been prepared in
conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting for the Governmental Fund Types
and the accrual basis of accounting for the Proprietary Fund Types as apphed to
government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles, The more significant of the government’s accounting policies are
described below.

(8)

(b)

Financial reporting entity

The Village’s combined financial statemez}:ts include the accounts of all Village
operations. The criteria for including oraanlzations as component units within the
Village's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of GASB's Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, include whether:

the organization is Eega?ly sep\e {can sue and be sued in their own name)
the Village holds the como{ﬂte powers of the organization
the Village appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board
; LT ey \ } . L.
the Village is ableifo impose its will on the organization
the orgamization hasthe potential to impose a financial benefit/hurden on the
Village
* there is fiscal'dependency by the organization on the Village

* & 2 » =

The Village has determined that no other outside agency meets the above criteria
and therefore, no other agency has been included as a component unit in the
Village’s financial statements. In addition, the Village is not aware of any entity that
would exercise such oversight, which would result in the Village being considered
a component unit of the entity.

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
government. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support,



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

©)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degtee to which the direct expenses of
a given function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program tevenues inchude
1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from
goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants
and contributions that are restricled to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items, properly
not included among program revenues, are reported instead as general revenues,

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary
funds. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurenent focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Grants and sifnilar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements il‘ngSE:d §y “\%e provider have been met.

,
Governmental fund financial statelents are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focug »and “the modified cash basis of accounting,
Accordingly, receipts are recotiled “when cash is received and disbursements are
recorded when checks aré'w itter, Only assets representing a right to receive cash
arising from a previouéipa};mgg‘cﬁf cash are recorded as assets of a fund. In the same
manner, only liabilities résulting from previous cash transactions are recorded as
Habilities of a peiﬁiculz??‘ :gu?id. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year

for which they a%{g@iged.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the same basis of
accounting as used by the individual funds in the fund financial statements.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Village’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those required fo be
accounted for in another fund.

The TIF Fund accounts for the receipts and related development expenses
including the debt service payments of the TIF district.

The Village reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water Fund and the Sewer Fund accounts for all activities related to the
billing, administration, distribution and collection processes of the water and
sewer utilities. The Village operates the water distribution system as well as the
sewdge treatment plant, sewage pumping stations and collection systems.
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d)

The Electric Light and Power Fund accounts for all activities related to the
billing, administration and distribution processes of the Village’s electric and
power operations.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are
reimbursements between funds for direct costs applicable to the other fund.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned,

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Village’s enterprise funds
are charges o customers for sales and services. The Village also recognizes as
operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting
new customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise finds include the cost
of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets, All
revenues and expenses not meeting this”c defipition are reported as nonoperating

revenues and expenses. i
.
u,
Assets, liabilities and net assets or ec;uit\?\
%%w K
% VN

&

Deposits and invegtments ..
The Village’s cash and cash g:qltivh;ents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, certificates of depoSitsand short-term investments with original maturities
of three months or lé%?ﬁ“i&lﬁf‘c[@yposits and investments are reported at fair value.

The Village is authorized by state statute to invest in obligations of the United States
of America, insured interest bearing accounts of barks, savings and loan associations
or credit unions, certain short-term obligations of corporations organized in the United
States, money market mutual funds that invest in obligations of the United States of
America or its agencies or are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United
States of America, the Ilinois Funds and repurchase agreements of government
securities. Investment income is recognized as earned.

Receivables and payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds”
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “Snternal
balances.”
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YILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Unbilled electric, water, and sewer utility receivables related to the business-type
activities are recorded at year-end, They are determined by taking cycle billings
subsequent to March 31 and prorating the applicable number of days to the current
fiscal year,

The Village records accounts receivable in the Statement of Net Position for amounts
that are due to the Village but have not been received at year-end. Accounts receivable
are largely comprised of billed and unbilled amounts for utilities in the business-type
activities. These balances are considered fully collectible at vear-end.

Capital assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. The government defines capital assets as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $500 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years,
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation. {

Q?‘Z? T

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend assets lives are nét cgyitalized.

.

Major outlays for capital assets ‘?;’a};nd jggﬁ“rqvements are capitalized as projects when
constructed, Interest incug}g;ﬁd during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type aclivities is"included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed. “\\‘ A,

Property, plant, and equi}ﬁ ent are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated tts%ggl‘*lives:

Type of Property Estimated
angd Equipment Useful Lives
Buildings and Improvements 15—-40 Years
Infrastructure 40 Years
Swimming Pool 20 Years
Distribution and Collection
Systems 15 - 50 Years
Vehicles and Equipment 5-10 Years
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ILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

v
et B oL B b et B T T E TSl A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Compensated absences
Sick leave is accrued for all employees at the rate of 1 day per month. On January 1%

of the year an employee celebrates their fifth year employment anniversary, and all
years thereafier, employees shall be granted twelve sick days. Sick leave can be cartied
forward, but not to exceed 65 work days, All full-time employees of the Village who
have been employed for at least one (1) full year shall become eligible for vacation as
indicated by the following table:

Vacation
Service Allowed
Having Completed 1 Year 5 Working Days
2-8 Years Continuous 10 Working Days
9-17 Years Continuous 15 Working Days
18 or More Years Continuous 20 Working Days

I day for each year over
18 years of service

An employee separated from the service of the Village shall be compensated for all
unused vacation leave accumulated prior to his/her effective date of separation but not
for accumulated sick leave. Any Hability @t-Ma%ch 31, 2020 is immaterial,

Long-term obligations {7’ P
In the government-wide financial statements and enterprise fund financial statements,

long-term debt and other Iong’—jtem;mho%liga.tions are teported as liabilities in the

statement of net position, y o e
A
VA B
Pund balances | S,

In the fund financial -Statqg’éms, the Village classifies the governmental fund balances
based upon the following eriteria:

Nonspendable - iticludes amounis that cannot be spent because they are either 1)
not in spendable form, or 2) legally or contractually required to remain intact.

Restricted — balances with constraints that are either externally imposed by
creditors or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Committed — balances that are to be only used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the Village Board, the highest level of
decision-making authority.

Assigned ~ balances that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used
for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed,

Unassigned - the residual classification of the General Fund balance.
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(€

(®

(8)

The following details the deseription and amount of all constraints recorded by the
Village in the fund financial statements:

Governmental Funds

Restricted:
Tax Increment Financing District $ 83,910
Motor Fuef Tax Fund 67,805
Impact Fees Fand 25,731
Total Restricted 3 181,446
Comnitted:
Internal Service Fund $ 96,534

When expenditures are icurred for which the Village has both restricted and
unrestricted funds available, the Village spends any restricted funds before using
unrestricted sources. Likewise, the Village uses comumitted, assigned and then
unassigned balances, in that order, when spending amounts for which all three
categories are available,

&
Budgetary Control A

&
Budgets are adopted on a basis consisterit with the modified cash basis of accounting,
Annval appropriated budgets are ac[fapteud for all governmental funds. All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal yesg-endf%g_
*.‘QP%% 4
On March 19, 2019 the V ill%ge ?ﬁ@ard approved an ordinance adopting the
appropriations which iséé;h%ucig%imy data reflected in these financial statements.
Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the

year for the General Fun%a%% Special Revenue Funds.

Risk Masagement §

§«§
The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the Village
carries commercial insurance. There have been no significant reductions in coverage
from the prior year and settlements have not exceeded coverages in the past three
years.

Estimates

The Village uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the reported revenues and expenditures. Actual results could vary from
estimates that were used.

28



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

At March 31, 2020, the carrying amount of the Village's deposits was $4,105,666 and the
bank balance was $4,120,331. The deposits were comprised of checking, interest
checking, money market funds and certificates of deposit.

At March 31, 2020, the Village had the following deposits and investments:

Weighted Average

Investment Maturity (Days) Fair Value

The Iilinois Funds (external investment pool) Daily & 7000

Patty Cash 615

Deposits as reported zbove 4,105,665

Total deposits and investments 5 4,177,281
As Reported in the Statement of Net Position:

Cash znd Cash Equivalents § 1,773,825

Investments , 2,403,456

S S PR

P $ 4,177,281

A s

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit rlslg, is the nsk that in the event of a bank failure,
the Vlllage s deposits may not be retwnéd to it. As of Masch 31, 2020, all cash deposit
balances in excess of FDIC msurancekwegfya collateralized with investments by the
financial institntion. %%

Interest Rate Risk. The Vﬂlage S mvestment policy limits investment maturities in order
to maimtain sufficient hquldg&tygto reﬂect the cash flow needs of the fund type being
invested. The Village only fnaintains investments in the Illinois F unds, which is an external
investment pool. S

The Illinois Funds are pooled investments that are operated by the State of Illinois as a
not-for-profit common law trust and are not registered with the SEC. The funds are
monitored regularly throngh the State by internal and external audits. The goals of the
funds are to provide liquidity and to maintain balances that are equal to the par value of
the invested shares with no loss to market fluctuations. The fair value of the Village's
position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

Credit Risk. As of March 31, 2020, the credit rating of the Village’s investment was as

follows:
Standard & Muody's Investors
Investment Poor's Rating Service Rating
The Illinols Funds (external investment pool) AAAmM -

Concentration of Credit Risk. As of March 31, 2020, the Village did not have a
concentration of credit risk.

Foreign Currency Rigk. As of March 31, 2020, the Village has no foreign currency risk.
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 3: PROPERTY TAXES

The Village’s property tax is levied each year on all taxable real property located in the
Village on or before the second Tuesday in December. The Board passed the levy on
November 4, 2019. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January
I and are payable in two installments. The County had not mailed tax bills as of March
31, 2020. Past mailing practices of the County have been subsequent to March 31 of each
year. The Village begins to receive significant distributions of tax receipts in June and
July after the bills are mailed by the County. The Village budgets and records property

tax revenue in the year the property taxes are received.

The following are the tax rates applicable to the various levies per $100 of assessed

valuation;
Maximum
Levy 2019 2018 2017
Tax Rates:
General $ 0.2500 5 0. 240’? $ 0.2271 $ 0.2007
Bonds and Interest None 0. (2593 s%& 0.0577 0.0607
IMRF None A.1365 £ 0.1930 0.193}
Police Protection 0.0750 O 0739 0.0682 0.0699
Audit None . 04109 0.0097 0.0100
Civil Defense (EST2A) 0.0500 4. 90, 0099 0.0051 0.0100
Total . X% .@f G 55 12 5 0.5648 5 0.5584
‘k .
N
Assessed Valuations “‘% o 91417649 8 88083697 § 85,854,730
?
Tax Extensions; a\
General \ 220,042 % 200,038 ) 180,037
Bouds and Interest 54,211 50,824 52,114
IMRF 143,069 170,002 170,078
Police Protection 67,558 60,073 66,012
Audit 9,965 $,544 8,586
Civil Defense (ESDA) 9,050 8,016 8,586
Total 3 503,893 $ 497497 § 479413
Tax Collections 3 - $ 499128 § 417754
Parcent Collected 0.00% 100.33% 99.65%
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILEINOIS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 4:

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended March 31, 2020 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases  Decreases Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land % 83,840 § - % - 3 83,340
Capital assets, being depreciated;
Buildings and improvements 854,915 304,043 12,584 1,144,374
Infrastructure 728,658 329,552 - 1,058,210
Vehicles and equipment 086,348 68,117 680 1,056,785
Total capital assats being depreciated 2,572.921 701,712 13,264 3,261,369
Less accumulated depreciation For:
Building and improvements 409,034 38,1538 12,584 434,608
Infrastructure 98,069, 27,623 - 125,692
Vehicles and equipment 725.582 71,181 680 200,083
Total accurmulaied depreciation 1 236“*685§ 136,862 13,204 1,360,383
] , P \
Totai capital assets, being depreciated, net #1,336.236 564,750 - 1,800,986
Governmental activities capitel assets, net., § 1420,076 §_ 564,750 § - § 1,084,826
% '-s:f;;;:‘_y g
: ?Qf%;;%
Busingss-type activities: s e
Capital assets, nat being depreciated:é’s
Land B, pmy 80 426,700 8 - % - $ 426,700
Capital assets, being de{gréﬁwﬁﬁ%{:@
Buildings and improvements % 7,353,451 697,490 - 8,250,941
Swimming pool ﬁ 1,099,984 2,032 - 1,108,016
Distribution and collection system 15,445,388 15,670 « 15,461,058
Vehicles and equipment 2,679,398 300,191 43,009 2,936,580
Total capital assets, being depreciated 20778221 1.021.383 43,009 _27.756.595
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 5,163,091 267,716 - 5,430,807
Swimming pool 457,550 51,678 - 506,228
Distribution and collection system 9,758,256 519,350 - 10,277,806
Vehicles and equipment 1,967,306 172.874 43.009 2,037,171
Total accumnuiated depreciation 17.286.203 1.011.8318 43,009 _18.255.012
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 9.492.018 0.565 - 9.501,583
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 9918718 § 9,565 3 - § 99237283
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Gavernmental activities;

General government £ 32,692
Public safety 52,963
Highways and streets 40,784
Sanitation 10,323
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities ¥ 136,962

Business-type activities:

Electric light and power & 648,394
Water 158,116
Sewer 131,074
Swimming pool 74234
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 3 1,011,818

NOTE 5: RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS "
&

(a) Lilinois Municipal Retirement Fund My,
&

Plan Description. The Village’s def;%ﬁed{eneﬁt pension plan for regular employees
provides retivement and disabiljty.benefits, post retirement increases, and death
benefits to plan members and beg;gﬁgi‘ﬁ‘ries. The Plan is affiliated with the Illinois
Municipal Retirement guﬁﬁ* (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer pian. Benefit
provisions are established by=statute and may only be changed by the General
Assembly of the Stafe of llinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report
that includes finaricial statéménts and required supplementary information. The report
may be obtained on‘%li%;; g;gt% www,imrf.org.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, members are required to contribute 4.50 percent of
their annual covered salary, The statute requires employers to contribute the amount
necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of
its own employees. The employer annual required contribution rate for calendar year
2019 was 8.06 percent. The employer also contributes for disability benefits, death
benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF
level. Coniribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board
of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by stafute.

Covered Employees. The following types of employees comprise the membership of

the plan.
Retirees and Beneficiaries 23
Inactive, non-Retired Members 12
Active Members 3l
Total 66
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Discount Rate. GASB Statement No. 68 includes a specific requirement for the
discount rate that is used for the purpose of the measurement of the Total Pension
Liability. This rate considers the ability of the fund to meet benefit obligations in the
future. To make this determination, employer contributions, employes contributions,
benefit payments, expenses and investment returns are projected into the fiture, The
Plan Net Position (assets) in future years can then be determined and compared to its
obligation to make benefit payments in those years. As long as assets are projected to
be on band in a future year, the assumed valuation discount rate is used. In years where
assets are not projected to be sufficient to meet benefit payments, the use of a “risk-
free” rate is required, as described in the following paragraph.

The Single Discount Rate (SDR) is equivalent to applying these two rates to the
benefits that are projected to be paid during the different time periods. The SDR
reflects (1) the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments {(during
the period in which the fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay
benefits) and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general
obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal
Reserve) as of the measurement date (to thgg(tent that the contributions for use with
the long-term expected rate of return are not met).

#
For the purpose of this vaiuation;iha Jexpected rate of return on pension plan
investments is 7.25%; the municipal ‘bond rate is 2.75%; and the resulting single
discount rate is 7.25%. i‘”‘“»@%w\\@
- $.F
Acmarial Vafuation Date g “\E Y 12/31/19
Measurement Date of the Net Pensjoh Liability 12/31/19
Fiscal Year End A7 03/31/20
Deveiopment of the Singl@Discmimt Rate as of Decemnber 31, 2019
Long-Term Expected Rate of Investment Return 7.25%
Long-Term Municipal Bond Rate 2.75%
Last year ending December 31 in the 2020 to 2119 projection period
for which projected benefit payments are fully funded 2118
Resulting Single Discount Rate based on the above development 7.25%
Single Discount Rate ealculated using December 31, 2018 Measurement Date 125%

The Long-Term Municipal Bond Rate is based on the Fidelity Index's "20 Year Municipal
GO AA Index" as of December 31, 2019,
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Actuarial Assumptions. The following are the actuarial assumptions used in the
calculation of the net pension Liability,

Actuatia! Cost Method Aggregate Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining Amortization Non-Taxing bodies: 10 year rolling period
Period Taxing bodies: 24 year closed period.

Early Retirement Incentive Plan liabilities: a period up to 10 vears
selected by the Employer upon adoption of ERI.
Asset Valuation Method  5-Yesr smocthed market; 20% corridor

Wage growth 3.25%

Price Inflation 2.50%

Jalary Increases 3.33% to 14.25% including inflation

Investment Rate of Retun 7.50%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility

condition. Last updated for the 2017 valuation pursuant to an experience
study of the period 2014-2016.

Mortality For non-disabled retivees, an IMRF specific mortality table was nsed with
fully generational projection Bcale MP-2017 (base vear 2015). The IMRF
specific rates were devel loped from the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health
Annuitant Mortalzty;*fabte witht ;adjpstments fo match cuwrrert IMRF
experience, For d1sqi)led retivees, an IMRF speeific morialty table was
used with fully geé@x;%}onai prajection scale MP-2017 (bage year 2015).
The IMRF § spec;wm ratgs were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled
Retirees Moréahty Table applymg the same adjustment that were applied
for gmn—dgab]e% lives, For active members, an IMRF specific mortality
table was, used “with fully generational projection scale MP-2017 (bage

,myear QOIS) The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014
Employee Mortalifty Table with adustments to match current IMRF
experience.

F
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Net Pension Liability. The following is a summary of the Net Pension Liability as shown
as a liability in the financial statements,

Total pension lability
Service Cost $ 175,047
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 532,041
Changes of benefit terms -
Difference between expected and actual experience
of the Total Pension Liability (51,203)
Changes of assumptions -
Benefit payments, neluding refinds
of erployee contribitions (332,557
Net change in total pension liability § 323328
Total pension fizbility - begirmning 7,417,254
Total pension fability - ending $ 7,740,582
Plan fidnciary net position 7
Conributions « employer A5 8 147,694
Coniributions - employee , S 82,460
Net investment income o 1,179,023
Benefit payments, including refimds X {g—g
of empioyee contributions B, %@M (332,357
Other (Net Transfer) 3%% e 31790
Net change in plan ﬁdugiaﬁ?]et positjéﬁ $ 1,108,410
Plan fichaciary net pasfion;ﬁibfgﬁyﬁgg‘ 6,419,317
Plan fiduciary efia“a*sition"a.,%émg $7,521,727
Nef pension habmgygg sef) $ 212,855
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liabifity 97.25%
Covered valuation payroll 51,832,439
Net pension liability as a percentage 11.62%

of covered valuation payroli
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

To report the sensitivity of the net pension liability to the selected discount rate, the
following table displays the variation given a 1% increase or decrease.

Cwrrent Single
Discount Rate
1% Decrease  Assumption 1% Increase

6.25% 7,25%, %.25%
Total Pension Liabiity $ 8,705,120 & 7,740,582 % 6,943,168
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 7,527,727 7,537,727 7,527,727

Net Pension Liability (Asset) £ 1177393 % 212,858 § (584,5359)

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Source to be recognized in
Future Pension Expenses. The following tables display the amount of deferred inflows

and outflows related to the net pension liability and the future periods that these deferrals
will affect the financial statements.

Deferred Deferred Net Daferved
Outﬁo;vs of  Inflows of Qutflows of
Resolrees Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience § %5505 % 231,366 $ (225,861)
Changed in assumptions . ; !27,@0 100,074 27,536
Subsequent coatributions to plan &:‘; 39,065 - 39,065
Net diffierence between projected and sctual earnings N

on pension plan investments e 526,410 832,293 (303,883)
Total 3698590 3 LI6LTI5 § (465,143)

‘ii e Net Deferred

N }’gf Year Ending Outflows of

December 31, Resources

2020 5 (141,341

2021 (135,543)

2022 8,821

2023 (147,080)

5 (465,145

(by Secial Security

All employees, including those qualifying for coverage under the Illinois Municipal
Retirement Fund, are covered under Social Security. The Village paid $157,204, the
required contribution for the current fiscal year.
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 6: LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

The computation of legal debt margin at March 31, 2020 is as follows:

Bonded Debt Limit* $ 7,884,772
Bonded Indebtedness 683,324
Legal Debt Margin $ 7,201,448

*  The bonded indebtedness of the Village is limited by Chapter 65, Section 5/8-5-1 of
the Illinois Compiled Statutes to 8.625% of the assessed valuation of taxable
tangible property.

NOTE 7: LINE OF CREDIT

The Village has a $1,000,000 line of credit with a local bank which expires December
12, 2022. Interest is at 2.09%. The highest balance at any time during the current fiscal
year was $§473,185. The Village had an outstanding balance of $473,185 at March 31
2020. e

-

",
NOTE $: LONG-TERM DEBT <@ >,
S
The Village has the foliowing long-tggg; debt as of March 31, 2020.
\%é w%@@?x
Notes Payable T V4
f‘ﬁf Y%

$225,618 loan with Citizens Coh}muzfity Bank to be repaid with annual payments of
$36,464 through July ;Oﬁ}igc%ﬁng interest at 3.182%. The loan was used to purchase
a Bucket/Pole Truck for the %leCﬁiC Light and Power Fund. The loan is secured by the
truck. The balance outstan%gg as of March 31, 2020 is $35,334.

$67,000 loan with Midland States Bank to be repaid with annual payments of $17,934
through October 2020, including interest at 2.75%. The loan was used to purchase a Leaf
Vacuum for the General Fund. The loan is secured by the related equipment. The balance
outstanding as of March 31, 2020 is $17,448.

$140,000 loan with Citizens Community Bank to be repaid in five annual payments of .
$30,344, including interest at 2.74%. The loan was used to pay for upgrades to the Police
Department building, The loan is unsecured. The balance outstanding as of March 31,
2020 is $140,000.

$148,000 loan with Citizens Community Bank to be repaid in seven annual payments of
$23,168, including interest at 2.34%. The [oan was used to purchase a boring machine to
be split between the Electric Light and Power and Water Funds, The loan is unsecured.
The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2020 is $148,000.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOQIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Upon default with the loans being held by the banks, the lender may declare the full unpaid
balance and interest to be due immediately.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows:

Year Ended Governmental Business-type
Mareh 31, Activities Aglivities

Principal Interest Pringipal Interest
2021 $ 43892 §  43% 3 55039 & 4,593

2022 27,189 3,154 20,166 3,002
2023 27,945 2,399 20,637 2,531
2024 28,721 1,623 254,120 2,048
2025 29,701 827 21,615 1,553
2026-2027 - - 44,757 1,578

$ 157448 8 12389 § 183334 $ 15305

Bonds Payvable

$550,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2%1 I' dated July 20, 2011, due in anmual
installments of $40,000 to $50,000 through December 1, 2026; interest at 4.25% to 5.25%,
The amount of bonds outstanding as of March 3?}&2020 is $310,000. These bonds are

#

being retired by the Swimming Pool Fund” .

$4,780,000 General Obligation Reﬁz’i‘i‘di@gﬁqus, Series 2012 dated September 13, 2012,
due in annual installments of $35 {},O%O ;o§‘$395,000 through December 1, 2025; interest
at 2.20% to 2.85%. The mnagn’f&gf bmf}q;s outstanding as of March 31, 2020 is $2,215,000.
These bonds are being retiréd by_-ﬁaaj@léctric Light and Power Fund. This issue refunded
Series 2005 Bonds. _#* %‘i\%

$1,950,000 General (?ﬁligatiofz Refinding Bonds, Series 2014 dated April 29, 2014, due
in semi-annual installments f $1 55,000 to $185,000 through November 1, 2025; interest
at 3.05% to 3.30%. The amount of bonds outstanding as of March 31, 2020 is $520,000.
These bonds are being retired by the TIF Fund. This issue refunded Series 2005 Tax
Increment Revenue Bonds.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds are as follows:

Year Ended Govermunental Business-type
March 31, Agtivities Activities
Principal Interest Pringipal Interest

2021 b - $ 16293 % 390,000 § 71,900
20022 - 16,293 395,000 62,499
2023 - 16,293 405,000 52,180
2024 135,600 16,293 415,000 41,154
2025 180,000 11,865 425,000 29,143

20262027 185,000 6,105 495,000 19,069

B 520,000 § 83,142  § 2525000 $ 275947
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IEPA Loans

$479,822 loan with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency to be repaid with semi-
annual installments of $15,7635, including interest at 2,535%. The loan was used to assist
in the construction of sanitary sewer lines and an excess flow clarifier at the West Sewage
Treatment Plant. The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2020 is $15,469,

$583,674 Joan with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency to be repaid with semi-
annual installments of $18,648, including interest at 2.925%. The loan was used to assist
in the construction of sewer hnes on North State Street. The balance outstanding as of
March 31, 2020 is $417,159.

$1,085,569 loan with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency to be repaid with
semi-annual installments of $33,757, including interest at 1.86%. The loan was used to
assist in the construction of the North Trunk Extension/Deerfield Rehef Sewer Project.
The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2020 is $980,125.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for EPA Loans are as follows:

Year Ended # @é XK
March 31 gEPA Loans °

Punclgalgf Interest
2021 Sx& 92863 $ 27613

2022 L, o6t 25847
2023 g "3‘ 80,566 24,247
2004 R AL 7,613
200547 = g3 ges 20,945
At
’fﬁzmogo n, 445 556 78,497
2031-2035 416,793 32,669
2036:2037 131,947 1,082

$ 1412753 § 235513

Capital Leases

$27,600 capital lease with John Deere to be paid in three annual payments of $10,065,
including interest at 4.50%. The loan was used to purchase three vehicles to be used in the

water, sewer, and street departments. The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2020 is
$9,604.

$24,731 capital lease with De Lage to be paid in monthly payments of $1,120, including
interest at 8.137%. The loan was used to purchase a phone system to be used in the general,
water, sewer, and electric departments. The balance cutstanding as of March 31, 2020 is
$8,696.
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINCIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for capital leases are as follows:

Year Ended Governmental Business-type
March 31 Activities Activities

Principal  [nterest Prineipal  Interest

2021 § 5876 8§ 245 0§ 12424 § 469
$ 5876 § 245 5 12424 § 469

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended March 31,
2020.

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions  Reduetions Balance One Year

Business-type Activities;

Bonds Payable 2,900,000 §$ - F 375000 § 2,525,000 $ 390,000
Notes from Direct Borrowings:
Capital |eases 27,079 e 14,655 12,424 12,424
Notes Payable 08,715 Lf,S;OGg 63,381 183,334 55,038
EPA Loans 1,534,156 r X*%s 121,403 1,412,753 92,863
Net Pension Liablity 530,166 - % 419,403 110,763 -

550901168 4148000 $ 993,847 § 4244274 §  550.326

Governmenial Activities:

Bonds Payable § LI75000 7% - § 655000 § 520,000 §
Notes from Dirsct Borrowings: ", 1l
Capital Leases £ 21600 - 6,725 5,876 5,876
Notes Payable oo v 140 140000 26701 157448 d3gem
¢ NBTLLT0 5 140000 § 688426 5 633324 S5 49,768
N

i, §‘}
NOTE9: ACTUAL EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF BUDGET

The Village had actual expenditures in excess of the budgeted amounts for the General
I'und and the TIF Fund for the year ended March 31, 2020,

NOTE 10: INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

The General Fund has an interfund payable to the TIF Fund of $3,774 and the Motor Fuel
Tax Fund of $903 as of March 31, 2020.

NOTE 11: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Village has evaluated events occurring after the financial statement date
through September 8, 2020 in order to determine their potential for recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements. The latter date is the same date the financial
statements were available to be issued,
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MODIFIED CASH BASIS
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Actual
Budgeted Amounts (Budget
Original Final Basis)
Revenues:
Property Tax $ 544,500 $ 544,500 § 554825
Replacement Tax 5,800 5,800 6,835
Sales Tax 410,000 410,000 451,046
State Income Tax 460,000 460,000 469,103
Local Use Tax 105,000 105,000 146,911
Telecommunications Tax 110,000 110,000 70,780
Video Gaming Tax ' 35,000 35,000 63,366
Franchise Tax 23{000 25,000 21,988
Lhitity Tax 245,'0%0 245,000 252,649
Licenses and Permits e 41,34’5'-% 41,345 50,836
Fines and Penalties & 419,000 19,000 10,031
Garbage Collection “ ﬁxi’ 254,500 254,500 257,060
Rental/Lease Income LR,y 1,300 1,300 17,898
Investment Earnings N % 5600 5,600 6,528
Grants AN % 25,109 25,109 23,500
Proceeds From Debt | £ ’ 140,000 140,000 140,000
Miscellaneous 262,010 262,010 53,920
Total Revenues 2,689,164 2,689,104 2,597.276
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government 343,456 343,450 312,003
Public Safety:
Police 1,172,270 1,172,270 1,263,037
Civil Defense 5,050 5,050 4,774
Highways and Streets 508,826 508,826 408,999
Sanitation 232,700 232,700 235,842
Capital Outlay 360,310 360,310 440,001
Debt Service 26,200 26,200 35291
Transfers 39,200 39,200 -
Total Expeaditures 2,688,012 2,688,012 2,699,947
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 1,152 3 1,152 (H02,671)

Change for modified cash basis reporting
None N

As reported on the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
Arising From Modified Cash Basis Transactions § (102,671



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MODIFIED CASH BASIS
TIF FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Actual
Budgeted Amounis (Budget
Original _ Final Basis)
Revenues:
Property Tax $ 230,000 § 230,000 $ 257,088
Investment Earnings 500 500 631
Total Revenues 230,500 230,500 257,719
Expenditures:
Debt Service
Principal 155 000 155,000 655,000
Interest and Fees # 33 OOO 33,000 41,897
Total Expenditures /188,000, 188,000 696,897
S
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 5, 42,500 $ 42,500 (439,178)

Change for modified cash basis rgpoﬁlngig 4
None & E% % -

T L IS

sy

As reported on the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
Arising From Medified C{Sh Ba51s Transactions $ (439,178)

>§
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VILEAGE OF FREEBURG. ILLINQIS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIARBILTY AND RELATED RATIOS

Total Pension Liability:

Service Cost
Interest

Difference between expected and actual experience

Assumption changes
Benefit payments, including refinds
Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee

Net investment income

Benefit payments, including refunds
Other

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND
MARCH 31, 2020

019 2018 2017 016 015
5175047 § 159,826 £ 179,569 § 177,858 $ 166,984
532,041 516,984 525,190 501,542 466,844
(51203) (113,945  (251,274) (44,602} 96,660
- 202,420 (221,760) (16,734} 16,488
(332,557) (322474 _ (M0,069) _ (302,922) _ (240,854)
323,328 442811 (108,344) 315,142 506,122
7417,254 6974443 7082787 6767645 6261523
$ 7,740,582 $§ 7417254 $ 6974443 § 7082787 $ 6,767.645

@gf

147,694 'i’%’? J46 174,004 177,706 186,321
82,460 P 55 76,243 76,818 77,063
1,179,037 (354, 450) 1,093,030 390,015 28,944
(332,537)@5(32 A74)(340,069)  (302,922)  (240,854)
L7904, 49,773 (349,403) 60,649 (83,002)
1, 103 33 v, (382,348) 653,805 402,266 (31,528)
A 419?%17 6,802,165 6148360 5746094 5777622

% =3_,7527777 § 6419317 § 6,302,165 § 6148360 $ 5,746,094

Pt “\‘%
Net Pension Liability %\\%& 212,855 % 997037 § 172278 b 934427 % 1,021,551
Plan fiduciary net positicn as a percentage of X@

the total pension liability

Covered-employee Payroll

Net position liability as a percentage of
covered-employes payrofl

97.25% 86.55% 97.53% 86.81% 84.81%

$.1332439 § 1,701,273 § 1694296 § 1,707,064 § 1712505

11.62% 58.66% 10.17% 34.74% 55.65%,




YiLLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINDIS

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND
MARCH 31, 2020

2019 018 2017 2016 20158

Actuarial Determined Contribution § 147,695 § 167,746 § 174,004 § 177,705 & 186,321
Contributions i relation to

actuarial determined contribution 147,694 167,746 174,004 177,706 186,321
Coniribution deficiency (excess) b J ! - § - 5 1§ -
Covered-employee Payroll 1,832.439 1701273 1,694,296 1,707,064  1712,505
Contributions as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll 8.06% 9.56% 10.27% 10.41% 10.88%

&
Actuarial valuation date for above is December 31, 2019, g
g‘?; Q‘&

.
R N
The actuarial valvations presented are prepared using the following perameters:

B,
Actnarial Cost Method: Aggregate E%nﬁﬁ'y;Age Normal
. »a
e 2
Amortization Method: Lével Percenfage of Payroll, Closed
B, e
oy -
Remaining Amortization Period: “i 24@—:3&;3
Agset Valuation Method: K\z;,.‘i’éar smoothed market; 20% corridor
Actuarial Assumgptions:
Interest Rate {current and prior) 7.50%
Wage Growth 3.25%

Price Inflation 2.50%



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
MARCH 31, 2020

Motor
Impact Fuel
Fees Tax Total
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 7,716 $§ 66,902 $ 74,618
Investments 22,015 - 22,015
Due From Other Funds - 903 903
Total Assets $ 29731 $ 67,805 $ 97536
. 7 fé ",
Liabilities and Fund Balance | f”" S,
Lisbilities: - N
None A8 e, B - $ - $ -
Total Liabilities N - - -
AN T
Fund Bal N AN e Foia,
fund Balance: P
Restricted %, g\ 29,731 67,805 97,536
Total Fund Balance M 29,731 67,805 97,536
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balance ' $ 29,731 $ 67,805 $ 97,536




NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Motor
Impact Fuel
Fees Tax Total
Revenues;
Motor Fuel Tax $ - $ 151,740 $ 151,740
Investment Income 460 4,923 5,383
Total Revenues 460 156,663 157,123
Expenditures:
Current; p
Highways and Streets }f 112,018 112,018
Capital Outlay L 3*%% 261,711 261,711
Total Expenditures S T a9 373,729
NG
Lixcess (Deficiency) of Revenues %“}}
Over Expenditures s ‘;3 jd 460 (217,066) (216,606)
O
“k::‘.; SR
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year . *il 29,271 284,871 314,142
Fund Balance, End of Year S $ 29731 § 67805 § 97,536




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
COMPLIANCE WITH TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ACT

To the Honorable Mayor and Board
of Trustees of the Village of
Freeburg, Illinois

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Village of Freeburg, Itlinois as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Finaucial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the modified cash basis of accoungné described in Note 1; this includes
determining that the modified cash basis of accountir;g is m%cgeptable basis for the preparation of
the financial statements in the circumstances. Madagement i3 also responsible for the design,
tmplementation, and maintenance of internal ng%gréﬁ relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. S,

7Y

_g{a'g’m-»-‘

Anditor’s Responsibility

g

Our responsibility is to express af?é%in@ngn these financial statements based on our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordante with guditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards requirg that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or etror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the enfity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 1o
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant estimates made by menagement, as well as svaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial staternents referred to above present faitly, in all material respects, the
cash balances of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois’ Tax Increment Financing District, as referred to
in the first paragraph, as of March 31, 2020 and the revenues it received and expenditures it paid
for the year then ended on the basis of accounting described in Note 1.

Other Matters

The management of the Village of Freeburg, Hlinois is responsible for the government's
compliance with laws and regulations. In connection with our audit, referred to above, we selected
and tested transactions and records to determine the government's compliance with 65 ILCS 5/11-
74.4-3, "Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act".

The results of our tests indicate that for the items tested, the Village of Freeburg, Illinois, complied
with Subsection (g) of 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3, "Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act”.
Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that, for the items not tested, the Village of
Freeburg, lllinois was not in compliance with Subsechon (@) of 65 H.CS 5/11-74.4-3, "Tax

Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act”. e xx
E
e ™,
‘i‘%f‘*’g%
P,
Certified Public Accountants Y f}?‘ )

Alton, llinois

September &, 2020




